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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

FOR THE DISTRICT OF IDAHO

L.J. GIBSON, BEAU BLIXSETH; AMY
KOENIG, DEAN FRESONKE, VERN
JENNINGS, TERRI FROEHLICH, MONIQUE
LEFLEUR, and GRIFFEN DEVELOPMENT,
LLC, each individually, and on behalf of
PROPOSED Plaintiff CLASS Members of
Tamarack Resort, Yellowstone Club, Lake Las
Vegas and Ginn Sur Mer,

Plaintiffs,
V.

CREDIT SUISSE AG, a Swiss corporation;
CREDIT SUISSE SECURITIES (USA), LLC, a
Delaware limited liability company, CREDIT
SUISSE FIRST BOSTON, a Delaware limited
liability corporation; CREDIT SUISSE
CAYMAN ISLAND BRANCH, an entity of
unknown type; CUSHMAN & WAKEFIELD,
INC., a Delaware corporation and DOES 1
through 100 inclusive,

Defendants.

Case No. 1:10-cv-00001-EJL
Affidavit of Tim Blixseth in Support of :

(A) Plaintiffs’ Motion for Rule 56
Conversion; and {(B) Request for
Discovery to Commence

[NOTE TO COURT AND COUNSEL:
Mr. Blixseth is out of country and
traveling and has approved this affidavit.
At his earliest opportunity it will be
signed and notarized and ECF filed as a
separate document]
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STATE OF )

County of )

TIMOTHY L. BLIXSETH, being first duly sworn, deposes and says:

1. I am the former owner of Blixseth Group, Inc., (“BGI”) which owned and operated
the Yellowstone Club, (“YC) from its inception until August 12, 2008, Thereafter, my ex-wife,
Edra Blixseth, in collusion with Samuel Byrne, a Credit Suisse bondholder, took control of the YC
by means of the fraudulent scheme described herein, The YC scheme perpetrated by Mr Byrne,
Ms. Blixset, and Credit Suisse was perpetrated by them to gain control of over $700 million in
marital community assets involved in our divorce proceedings for less than $65 million. Although
the YC scheme is a sub-plot to the larger fraudulent scheme perpetrated on the plaintiff class by
Credit Suisse and Cushman & Wakefield as described herein, Mr. Byrne’s position as a Credit
Suisse bondholder in the fraudulent scheme to take control of the YC provides insight into the facts
involving the massive fraud perpetrated by Credit Suisse directly on the plaintiff class.

2. [ make this affidavit in support of the plaintiffs from all resorts in the pending class
action based on my extensive personal knowledge of the facts involving the Credit Suisse First
Boston, (“CSFB”) syndicated loan program which it aggressively marketed to the YC and to other
resort communities. Although CSFB specifically and explicitly deceived me personally as the
developer of the YC, my damages are less direct, and in part, more derivative than the damages
to the YC, its members and homeowners, and to the plaintiff class. 1 have personal knowledge
that the Credit Suisse and Cushman & Wakefield FIRREA violations directly defrauded and
damaged the plaintiff class; and specifically damaged and defrauded the YC class members at the

time the YC participated in the CSFB syndicated loan program. I have personal knowledge that

.1-
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their fraudulent scheme was predicated on the CSFB internal marketing analysis of lot sales to the
plaintiff class, which I now understand they projected into an appraisal scheme with Cushman
&Wakefield called “Total Net Value.” In turn, the lot sales to the plaintiff class, constituted the
foundation for the syndication of their loan program. In turn, the syndication of their loan scheme
was based on a “Confidential Information Memoranda” distributed to syndicated investors, (some
of whom, Like Mr. Byrne, aided and abetted their scheme), directly compiled from confidential
and proprietary information they obtained from the YC by means of fraudulent representations and
/ or concealed omissions after gaining my confidence and trust as lending advisors. As for the YC
homeowners, they have also been subsequently defrauded by Samuel Byme and his company,
Cross Harbor Capital Partners, in collusion with Credit Suisse.

3. In December, 2004, while owning and operating the YC through BGI, the Credit
Suisse First Boston (“CSFB”) marketing team approached me and asked me to participate in what
they called an “Equity Recapitalization Loan.” They held themselves out as representatives and
employees of Credit Suisse First Boston, a United States bank. The CS team aggressively solicited
me and made numerous representations about the program, which I have gradually discovered to
be false beginning on or about May, 2009, and continuing to this date

4. Atfirst, knowing nothing about their loan program, I rejected their proposals. They
persisted. Gradually, on behalf of the YC and its homeowners, I began to trust and rely upon their
representations; and their apparent sophistication, expertise, experience and representations about
themselves, Credit Suisse and their loan program. Based on said reliance and the truth of their
representations about the program, themselves and Credit Suisse First Boston, which I believed to

be a bank operating under the laws of the United States, 1 gave them access to the YC’s
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confidential and proprietary information. This information was and is the lifeblood of the YC
development - the sales of lots and memberships to the plaintiff class. This information is the
foundation for their “Confidential Information Memoranda”, which, in turn, is the basis for their
fraud on the plaintiff class. They used confidential and proprietary information to create a fraudulent
appraisal scheme in violation of U.S. banking laws. Ultimately their fraudulent scheme is simple -
fabricate a model for projected lot sales to the plaintiff class in violation of FIRREA, circumvent

FIRREA in their “Confidential Information Memoranda” by means of the “Cayman Islands
Branch,” and syndicate to investors using the fraudulent appraisals, rake off huge profits with no
risk, and when the resorts fail, take them over for a fraction of their real value. As a result of this
frand, they have now added another profit center. Of course, the obvious victims who have had
all of their inflated, paid for value/ equity destroyed, are the plaintiff class. Had I known that this
was the corrupt and ruthless scheme of CSFB, or their international parent, or had my lawyers
advised me that the scheme violated federal law, I would not have participated in their “Equity
Recapitalization Loan Program.”

5. In my relationship with CSFB, over a period of many months from early 2005 until
September 30, 2005, when the loan closed, they became trusted advisors in the ongoing
development, such that I had reposed confidence and trust in their advice at their urging, and, in
effect, were fiduciaries to me and to the YC homeowners, lot developers, members, and others, who
all depended on CSFB’s advice as lending advisor to the YC development project. They became
trusted confidants in the context of the syndication process. We were all defrauded by their material
misrepresentations and material omissions. They were the experts who had come to me, similar to

a lawyer advising me, but one who had solicited me,
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6. One of their key representations inducing my cooperation was that other similar
resort comrmunities were participating in the loan program; and they referred me to Lake Las Vegas
(“LLV™) and Ron Boedekker, as an example of the legality and financial soundness of their
program, and his reliance on them for their financial advice and expertise. Together with their status
as a United States bank having alarge international reputation, their referral to LLV gave themselves
and their loan program substantial credibility and legitimacy. In short, I came to trust them as I
would my own lawyer; and as explained below, both my lawyers and the CSFB lawyers advised me
that the loan program was legitimate, legal, ethical, and proper under all applicable laws.

7. The CSFB representatives also used LLV’s participation in their loan program as
an example of their integrity, expertise, experience and reliability as financial advisors, and
sophisticated bankers, who could be trusted specifically in connection with their “Equity
Recapitalization Loan Program™ not only by me but also by resorts with the success and credibility
of LLV, Together, we were collectively deceived about their integrity and their true intentions as
trusted advisors; and by their failure as fiduciaries to disclose to us that their loan program violated
U.S. banking laws, professional appraisal standards, professional appraisal ethical standards, and
local and state regulatory standards. As I understand it from the experts and the lawyers, these
violations are undeniable facts, but Credit Suisse is somehow claiming either these violations did
not occur, or that FIRREA does not apply. I like to keep things simple. FIRREA is supposed to
prohibit fabricated and inflated appraisals of real estate in the United States so that U.S. banks
don’t lend too much money based on the fake appraisals; and so that homeowners (or the banks)
don’t purchase or lose real value. CSFB that I dealt with is a U.S. bank. Cushman & Wakefield

based on the scheme of CSFB issued a $1.165 Billion appraisal on the YC when it was only worth
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less than half that amount in order to syndicate its loans to a group of hedge fund managers and
obtain certain bond ratings. The homeowners and plaintiff class used U.S. banks to get loans to
buy the properties in the U.S. and directly depended upon the $142 million CSFB loaned the YC to
develop the YC real property, but CSFB, a U. S. regulated bank now claims that the use of its
Cayman Istands Branch, circumvents U.S. banking laws? Isn’t this an admission of their fraud?

8. On or about April 2009 and going forward, 1 gradually learned during the Montana
bankruptcy litigation, as ruled by Judge Kirscher, that CSFB and its appraiser, Cushman &
Wakefield, at least according to Judge Kirscher, violated FIRREA and created false appraised
values for the YC. Then CSFB dodged that bullet in order to avoid a final judgment; and made a
deal with Mr. Byrne, their insider-bondholder, to take over the YC by having him borrow about
$40 million using Goldman Sachs as their underwriter. Judge Kirscher then ostensibly vacated
his ruling. Mr. Byrne is now paying off all of the CSFB loan at the rate of $500,000 per lot at
severely distressed prices, but sufficient to realize huge profits based on his effective theft of the
YC, while the YChomeowner’s equity has been devastated, and continues to decline as Mr. Byrne
undercuts their ability to sell by selling unsold lots at deflated prices. The YC homeowners have
been directly damaged by this outrageous scheme. Appeals are pending which may cause Judge
Kirscher’s ruling to be reinstated, but CSFB is now claiming that FIRREA does not apply? Their
logic appears to be proportionate to their fraud. Credit Suisse also made a deal with Byrne giving
CSFB an option to purchase 15% of the YC.

9. I have also acquired substantial evidence that the YC bankruptcy was directly
caused in bad faith by Mr. Byme while acting as an insider-bondholder for Credit Suisse, and

combining with my ex-wife, Edra Blixseth to put the YC into bankruptcy so that they could acquire
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it at a fraction of its value. When I decided, based on the CSFB advisors, to have the YC
participate in the loan, Ihad never heard of “FIRREA,” the “Total Net Value™ appraisal method as
violating FIRREA, or that CSFB had used the Cayman Islands in an attempt to circumvent U.S. law,
which was in itself, as I am now informed, a violation of U.S. law and appraisal requirements. The
facts as I know them make the use of the Cayman Islands branch of Credit Suisse part and parcel
of the scheme to defraud me, the YC, and its homeowners and members.

10. My lawyers apparently were also duped because none of the three law firms,
including two advising me and one of the Credit Suisse firms, advised me of this fraud. 1 don’t
believe one of my lawyers had ever heard of FIRREA; and the lawyer who gave me a written
opinion, that the loan “complied with all laws” never advised me that the loan violated professional
appraisal standards, and as such, violated FIRREA, or that Credit Suisse was using the Cayman
Islands as a fiction to engineer the fraud. None of the opinions to my knowledge ever referenced
FIRREA. The Credit Suisse representatives, and lawyers, and Cushman & Wakefield never
informed me, or apparently, my lawyers, that their loan program violated U.S. banking laws and
regulations. If T'had known or been advised of such, I never would have participated in the loan
program on behalf of myself and the YC members and homeowners.

11. I understand that Credit Suisse and Cushman & Wakefield are claiming in certain
legal pleadings in connection with this class action seeking to dismiss the complaint that the
plaintiffs in this class action have not been defrauded by them. I know this itself to be false. Like
me, they have been defrauded. They are as much or more a part of the YC as myself. The CSFB

frauds directly impacted them more than anyone else. The evidence I will offer will prove these

facts.
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12. Having now spoken to Mr. Boedekker of LLV and Mr. Alfredo Miguel from
Tamarack Resorts in Idaho, [ realize we were all deceived and defrauded. CSFB made the same
type of, or very similar false representations and material omissions to me that they made to them.

13. The material falsehoods and concealed omissions made to me in various statements

and by their conduct are:

(a) The CSFB/C&W loan program was legal, legitimate, financially sound, and
based on acceptable banking practices and appraisals under U.S. law;

(b) CSFB/C&W did not disclose to me that the program violated FIRREA, or
disclose to me anything about FIRREA, which I knew nothing about. I relied upon
CSFB as a sophisticated lending advisor to advise me of such matters. They did not;
(¢) CSFB did not disclose to me that the program violated professional appraisal
standards, or ethical standards, or state or local regulatory, or industry standards.

These were matters specifically within their knowledge, not mine. [ relied upon
CSFB as my advisors to advise me of such matters. They did not.

12. Having now participated in litigation in Montana relating to the CSFB scheme to
inflate the values of these resorts in order to syndicate their loan program, I now realize the
magnitude of their scheme. For example, I now realize that in addition to their marketing team,
they have a second “Team”, their “Risk Management Team,” that evaluated and approved their
lending scheme with a sophisticated plan to maximize their profits if the loans failed; and that they
proceeded, unknown to me, to rake off tens of millions in no-risk profit, impose the risk ultimately
on the on the resorts and homeowners; and collectively plan with their bondholders, to in effect, bet
against the loans with an anticipation of failure based on their bloated appraisal methods.

13.  One of the schemes they used as part of their bet on the failure of the loans, I now

realize, involve something called “Credit Default Swaps,” (“CDS”). The CSFB representatives,

while acting as trusted lending advisors to me and the YC, its members and homeowners, shortly
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before the loan closed on September 30, 2005, told me that they wanted the YC to buy the CDS’
at a premium of $2 million per year. At the time, 1 had a very limited understanding of what CDS’
were based solely on what the CSFB representatives stated to me. 1 refused. Now, having read
material such as the attached SEC complaint against Goldman Sachs, (Exhibit 1), T understand that
these are financial derivatives that led in part to the meltdown of the financial services industry; and
that they also violate federal law. The attached complaint contains allegations that are virtually
identical to the scheme CSFB employed with the YC. 1also now understand that either CS or its
bondholders could have purchased them without my involvement and built the cost into their loan
program. These facts need to be discovered in order to determine the scope of the CSFB frauds.
14.  Additionally, I recently learned that when the CSFB bondholder, Samue! Byrne,
bought the YC in bankruptcy for a fraction of its value, he raised about $40 million by having
Goldman Sachs underwrite the offering. Discovery is needed to determine the relationships between
all of these parties. If credit default swaps are also involved then there are layers of fraud involved.
According to the CSFB lending protocols, the YC, and to my knowledge the other resorts, all had
to provide complete quarterly, audited financials throughout the loan. The bondholders - | am
informed mostly hedge fund managers - had access to this information and could monitor the
financial status of ¢ach loan and could purchase credit default swaps. Mr. Byrne had an additional
hedge because he had engaged in over six months of due diligence under the pretense of buying the
YC and had direct knowledge of its finaces. This insider knowledge of CSFB, Mr. Byme, and the
other bondholders provided a fraudulent feeding ground to collect on any credit default swaps while
also taking over the resorts at a fraction of their real value. The attorneys general and the U.S.

attorneys from the various states involved should be investigating these matters.
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15.  Moreover, as recited in the second amended complaint involving the YC, there are
numerous collateral facts involving overt criminal activity by some of the co-conspirators, such as
the fabrication of “Grand Jury Target Letters” by Ms. Blixseth to assist Mr. Byrne in driving the
price down relating to his pretended purchase of the YC, the overt destruction of evidence, a
pretended buyout of at least one creditor in order to destroy evidence using the family name and

persona of an infamous mobster hit man, and much more. Respectfully, the court should permit

investigation of these facts.

i
it

I hereby declare under the penalties of perjury pursuant to the laws of Idaho and the United
States that the foregoing is true and correct, this day of April, 2010.

8/

Timothy Blixseth

On this day of April, 2010, before me, the undersigned, a Notary Public in and for said
State, personally appeared Timothy L. Blixseth, known or identified to me to be the person whose
name is subscribed to the within instrument, and acknowledged to me that he executed the same.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, | have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal the day
and year in this certificate first above written.

Print Name:

NOTARY PUBLIC in and for the State of
; residing at:

My commission expires:
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMPLAINT
COMMISSION, [Securities Fraud]
Plaintiff, 10-CV- ¢ )
V. ECF CASE
GOLDMAN SACHS & CO. and Jury Trial Demanded
FABRICE TOURRE,
Defendants.

Plaintiff, the United States Securities and Exchange Commission ("Commission"),
alleges as follows against the defendants named above:

OVERVIEW

i. The Commission brings this securities fraud action against Goldman, Sachs & Co.
(“GS&Co”) and a GS&Co employee, Fabrice Tourre (“Tourre”), for making materially
misleading statements and omissions in connection with a synthetic collateralized debt obligation
(“CDO”) GS&Co structured and marketed to investors. This synthetic CDO, ABACUS 2007-
AC1, was tied to the performance of subprime residential mortgage-backed securities (“RMBS™)
and was structured and marketed by GS&Co in early 2007 when the United States housing
market and related securities were beginning to show signs of distress. Synthetic CDOs like
ABACUS 2007-ACl1 contributed to the recent financial crisis by magnifying losses associated

with the downturn in the United States housing market.

2. GS&Co marketing materials for ABACUS 2007-AC1 — including the term sheet,

flip book and offering memorandum for the CDO - all represented that the reference portfolio of

EY\:\\\D‘\-\ \
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RMBS underlying the CDO was selected by ACA Management LLC (“ACA™), a third-party
with experience analyzing credit risk in RMBS. Undisclosed in the marketing materials and
unbeknownst to investors, a large hedge fund, Paulson & Co. Inc. (“Paulson™), with economic
interests directly adverse to investors in the ABACUS 2007-AC1 CDO, played a significant role
in the portfolio selection process. After participating in the selection of the reference portfolio,
Paulson effectively shorted the RMBS portfolio it helped select by entering into credit default
swaps (“CDS”) with GS&Co to buy protection on specific layers of the ABACUS 2007-AC1
capital structure. Given its financial short interest, Paulson had an economic incentive to choose
RMBS that it expected to experience credit events in the near future. GS&Co did not disclose
Paulson’s adverse economic interests or its role in the portfolio selection process in the term

sheet, flip book, offering memorandum or other marketing materials provided to investors.

3. In sum, GS&Co arranged a transaction at Paulson’s request in which Paulson
heavily influenced the selection of the portfolio to suit its economic interests, but failed to
disclose to investors, as part of the description of the portfolio selection process contained in the
marketing materials used to promote the transaction, Paulson’s role in the portfolio selection

process or its adverse economic interests,

4. Tourre was principally responsible for ABACUS 2007-AC1. Tourre devised the
transaction, prepared the marketing materials and communicated directly with investors. Tourre
knew of Paulson’s undisclosed short interest and its role in the collateral selection process.
Tourre also misled ACA into believing that Paulson invested approximately $200 million in the
equity of ABACUS 2007-ACl1 (a long position) and, accordingly, that Paulson’s interests in the

collateral section process were aligned with ACA’s when in reality Paulson’s interests were

sharply conflicting.
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5. The deal closed on April 26, 2007. Paulson paid GS&Co approximately $15
million for structuring and marketing ABACUS 2007-AC1. By October 24, 2007, 83% of the
RMBS in the ABACUS 2007-AC1 portfolio had been downgraded and 17% were on negative
watch. By January 29, 2008, 99% of the portfolio had been downgraded. As a result, investors
in the ABACUS 2007-AC1 CDO lost over $1 billion. Paulson’s opposite CDS positions yielded

a profit of approximately $1 billion for Paulson.

6. By engaging in the misconduct described herein, GS&Co and Tourre directly or
indirectly engaged in transactions, acts, practices and a course of business that violated Section
17(a) of the Securities Act of 1933, 15 U.S.C. §77q(a) ("the Securities Act"), Section 10(b) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, 15 U.S.C. §78j(b) ("the Exchange Act") and Exchange Act
Rule 10b-5, 17 C.F.R. §240.10b-5. The Commission seeks injunctive relief, disgorgement of

profits, prejudgment interest, civil penalties and other appropriate and necessary equitable relief

from both defendants.

JURISDICTION AND VENUE

7. This Court has jurisdiction over this action pursuant to Sections 21(d), 21(e), and
27 of the Exchange Act [15 U.S.C. §§ 78u(d), 78u(e), and 78aa]. Each defendant, directly or
indirectly, made use of the means or instruments of interstate commerce, or of the mails, or the
facilities of a national securities exchange in connection with the transactions, acts, practices, and
courses of business alleged herein, Certain of the acts, practices, and courses of conduct

constituting the violations of law alleged herein occurred within this judicial district.
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DEFENDANTS

8. Goldman, Sachs & Co. is the principal United States broker-dealer of The
Goldman Sachs Group, Inc., a global investment banking, securities and investment

management firm headquartered in New York City. GS&Co structured and marketed

ABACUS 2007-AC1.

9. Fabrice Tourre, age 31, is a registered representative with GS&Co. Tourre was
the GS&Co employee principally responsible for the structuring and marketing of ABACUS
2007-AC1. Tourre worked as a Vice President on the structured product correlation trading desk
at GS&Co headquarters in New York City during the relevant period. Tourre presently works in

London as an Executive Director of Goldman Sachs International.

FACTS

A. GS&CO’S CORRELATION TRADING DESK

10.  GS&Co’s structured product correlation trading desk was created in and around
late 2004/early 2005. Among the services it provided was the structuring and marketing of a
series of synthetic CDOs called “ABACUS” whose performance was tied to RMBS. GS&Co
sought to protect and expand this profitable franchise in a competitive market throughout the
relevant period. According to an internal GS&Co memorandum to the Goldman Sachs
Mortgage Capital Committee (“MCC”) dated March 12, 2007, the “ability to structure and
execute complicated transactions to meet multiple client’s needs and objectives is key for our
franchise,” and “[e]xecuting this transaction [ABACUS 2007-AC1] and others like it helps

position Goldman to compete more aggressively in the growing market for synthetics written

on structured products.”
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B. PAULSON’S INVESTMENT STRATEGY

11. Paulson & Co. Inc. (“Paulson”) is a hedge fund founded in 1994, Beginning in
2006, Paulson created two funds, known as the Paulson Credit Opportunity Funds, which took
a bearish view on subprime mortgage loans by buying protection through CDS on various debt
securities. A CDS is an over-the-counter derivative contract under which a protection buyer

makes periodic premium payments and the protection seller makes a contingent payment if a

reference obligation experiences a credit event.

12. RMBS are securities backed by residential mortgages. Investors receive
payments out of the interest and principal on the underlying mortgages. Paulson developed an
investment strategy based upon the belief that, for a variety of reasons, certain mid-and-
subprime RMBS rated “Triple B,” meaning bonds rated “BBB” by S&P or “Baa2” by
Moody’s, would experience credit events. The Triple B tranche is the lowest investment grade
RMBS and, after equity, the first part of the capital structure to experience losses associated

with a deterioration of the underlying mortgage loan portfolio.

13. CDOs are debt securities collateralized by debt obligations including RMBS.
These securities are packaged and generally held by a special purpose vehicle (“SPV™) that
issues notes entitling their holders to payments derived from the underlying assets. Ina
synthetic CDO, the SPV does not actually own a portfolio of fixed income assets, but rather
enters into CDSs that reference the performance of a portfolio (the SPV does hold some

collateral securities separate from the reference portfolio that it uses to make payment

obligations).
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14.  Paulson came to believe that synthetic CDOs whose reference assets consisted
of certain Triple B-rated mid-and-subprime RMBS would experience significant losses and,

under certain circumstances, even the more senior AAA-rated tranches of these so-called

“mezzanine” CDOs would become worthless.

C. GS&CO AND PAULSON DISCUSS A PROPOSED TRANSACTION

15. Paulson performed an analysis of recent-vintage Triple B-rated RMBS and
identified various bonds it expected to experience credit events. Paulson then asked GS&Co to
help it buy protection, through the use of CDS, on the RMBS it had adversely selected,

meaning chosen in the belief that the bonds would experience credit events.

16.  Paulson discussed with GS&Co possible transactions in which counterparties to
its short positions might be found. Among the transactions considered were synthetic CDOs
whose performance was tied to Triple B-rated RMBS. Paulson discussed with GS&Co the
creation of a CDO that would allow Paulson to participate in selecting a portfolio of reference
obligations and then effectively short the RMBS portfolio it helped select by entering into CDS

with GS&Co to buy protection on specific layers of the synthetic CDQO’s capital structure.

17. A Paulson employee explained the investment opportunity as of January 2007

as follows:

“It is true that the market is not pricing the subprime RMBS wipeout scenario.
In my opinion this situation is due to the fact that rating agencies, CDO
managers and underwriters have all the incentives to keep the game going,
while ‘real money’ investors have neither the analytical tools nor the
institutional framework to take action before the losses that one could
anticipate based [on] the ‘news’ available everywhere are actually realized.”
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18. At the same time, GS&Co recognized that market conditions were presenting
challenges to the successful marketing of CDO transactions backed by mortgage-related
securities. For example, portions of an email in French and English sent by Tourre to a friend
on January 23, 2007 stated, in English translation where applicable: “More and more leverage
in the system, The whole building is about to collapse anytime now...Only potential survivor,
the fabulous Fabfrice Tourre]...standing in the middle of all these complex, highly leveraged,
exotic trades he created without necessarily understanding all of the implications of those
monstruosities!!!” Similarly, an email on February 11, 2007 to Tourre from the head of the

GS&Co structured product correlation trading desk stated in part, “the cdo biz is dead we don’t

have a lot of time left.”

D. INTRODUCTION OF ACA TO THE PROPOSED TRANSACTION

19. GS&Co and Tourre knew that it would be difficult, if not impossible, to place
the liabilities of a synthetic CDOQ if they disclosed to investors that a short investor, such as
Paulson, played a significant role in the collateral selection process. By contrast, they knew
that the identification of an experienced and independent third-party collateral manager as

having selected the portfolio would facilitate the placement of the CDO liabilities in a market

that was beginning to show signs of distress.

20. GS&Co also knew that at least one significant potential investor, IKB Deutsche
Industriebank AG (“IKB”), was unlikely to invest in the liabilities of a CDO that did not utilize

a collateral manager to analyze and select the reference portfolio.

21. GS&Co therefore sought a collateral manager to play a role in the transaction

proposed by Paulson. Contemporaneous internal correspondence reflects that GS&Co
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recognized that not every collateral manager would “agree to the type of names [of RMBS]

Paulson want[s] to use” and put its “name at risk...on a weak quality portfolio.”

22.  Inorabout January 2007, GS&Co approached ACA and proposed that it serve
as the “Portfolio Selection Agent” for a CDO transaction sponsored by Paulson. ACA
previously had constructed and managed numerous CDOs for a fee. As of December 31,

2006, ACA had closed on 22 CDO transactions with underlying portfolios consisting of $15.7

billion of assets.

23. Internal GS8&Co communications emphasized the advantages from a marketing
perspective of having ACA associated with the transaction. For example, an internal email

from Tourre dated February 7, 2007, stated:

“One thing that we need to make sure ACA understands is that we want their
name on this transaction. This is a transaction for which they are acting as
portfolio selection agent, this will be important that we can use ACA’s
branding to help distribute the bonds.”

24. Likewise, an internal GS&Co memorandum to the Goldman Sachs MCC dated
March 12, 2007 described the marketing advantages of ACA’s “brand-name” and “credibility™":

“We expect the strong brand-name of ACA as well as our market-leading

position in synthetic CDOs of structured products to result in a successful
offering.”

“We expect that the role of ACA as Portfolio Selection Agent will broaden the
investor base for this and future ABACUS offerings.”

“We intend to target suitable structured product investors who have previously
participated in ACA-managed cashflow CDO transactions or who have
previously participated in prior ABACUS transactions.”

“We expect to leverage ACA’s credibility and franchise to help distribute this
Transaction.”
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E. PAULSON’S PARTICIPATION IN THE COLLATERAL SELECTION
PROCESS

25. In late 2006 and early 2007, Paulson performed an analysis of recent-vintage
Triple B RMBS and identified over 100 bonds it expected to experience credit events in the
near future. Paulson’s selection criteria favored RMBS that included a high percentage of
adjustable rate mortgages, relatively low borrower FICO scores, and a high concentration of
mortgages in states like Arizona, California, Florida and Nevada that had recently experienced
high rates of home price appreciation. Paulson informed GS&Co that it wanted the reference

portfolio for the contemplated transaction to include the RMBS it identified or bonds with

similar characteristics.

26. On January 8, 2007, Tourre attended a meeting with representatives from

Paulson and ACA at Paulson’s offices in New York City to discuss the proposed transaction.

27. On January 9, 2007, GS&Co sent an email to ACA with the subject line,
“Paulson Portfolio.” Attached to the email was a list of 123 2006 RMBS rated Baa2. On
January 9, 2007, ACA performed an “overlap analysis” and determined that it previously had

purchased 62 of the 123 RMBS on Paulson’s list at the same or lower ratings.

28. On January 9, 2007, GS&Co informed ACA that Tourre was “very excited by

the initial portfolio feedback.”

29. On January 10, 2007, Tourre sent an email to ACA with the subject line,
“Transaction Summary.” The text of Tourre’s email began, “we wanted to summarize ACA’s
proposed role as ‘Portfolio Selection Agent’ for the transaction that would be sponsored by

Paulson (the ‘Transaction Sponsor’).” The email continued in relevant part, “[s]tarting
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portfolio would be ideally what the Transaction Sponsor shared, but there is flexibility around

the names.”

30. On January 22, 2007, ACA sent an email to Tourre and others at GS&Co with
the subject line, “Paulson Portfolio 1-22-10.x1s.” The text of the email began, “Attached
please find a worksheet with 86 sub-prime mortgage positions that we would recommend

taking exposure to synthetically. Of the 123 names that were originally submitted to us for

review, we have included only 55.”

31.  OnlJanuary 27, 2007, ACA met with a Paulson representative in Jackson Hole,
Wyoming, and they discussed the proposed transaction and reference portfolio. The next day,
on January 28, 2007, ACA summarized the meeting in an email to Tourre. Tourre responded
via email later that day, “this is confirming my initial impression that [Paulson] wanted to

proceed with you subject to agreement on portfolio and compensation structure.”

32. On February 2, 2007, Paulson, Tourre and ACA met at ACA’s offices in New
York City to discuss the reference portfolio. Unbeknownst to ACA at the time, Paulson
intended to effectively short the RMBS portfolio it helped select by entering into CDS with
GS&Co to buy protection on specific layers of the synthetic CDO’s capital structure. Tourre
and GS&Co, of course, were fully aware that Paulson’s economic interests with respect to the
quality of the reference portfolio were directly adverse to CDO investors. During the meeting,
Tourre sent an email to another GS&Co employee stating, “I am at this aca paulson meeting,
this is surreal.” Later the same day, ACA emailed Paulson, Tourre, and others at GS&Co a list

of 82 RMBS on which Paulson and ACA concurred, plus a list of 21 “replacement” RMBS.

10
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ACA sought Paulson’s approval of the revised list, asking, “Let me know if these work for you

at the Baa2 level.”

33. On February 5, 2007, Paulson sent an email to ACA, with a copy to Tourre,

deleting eight RMBS recommended by ACA, leaving the rest, and stating that Tourre agreed

that 92 bonds were a sufficient portfolio.

34, On February 3, 2007, an internal ACA email asked, “Attached is the revised
portfolio that Paulson would like us to commit to — all names are at the Baa2 level. The final
portfolio will have between 80 and these 92 names. Are ‘we’ ok to say yes on this portfolio?”
The response was, “Looks good to me. Did [Paulson] give a reason why they kicked out all

the Wells [Fargo] deals?” Wells Fargo was generally perceived as one of the higher-quality

subprime loan originators.

35. On or about February 26, 2007, after further discussion, Paulson and ACA came

to an agreement on a reference portfolio of 90 RMBS for ABACUS 2007-AC1.

F. GS&CO MISLED INVESTORS BY REPRESENTING THAT ACA
SELECTED THE PORTFOLIO WITHOUT DISCLOSING PAULSON’S
SIGNIFICANT ROLE IN DETERMINING THE PORTFOLIO AND ITS
ADVERSE ECONOMIC INTERESTS

36.  GS&Co’s marketing materials for ABACUS 2007-AC1 were false and
misleading because they represented that ACA selected the reference portfolio while omitting

any mention that Paulson, a party with economic interests adverse to CDO investors, played a

significant role in the selection of the reference portfolio.

37 For example, a 9-page term sheet for ABACUS 2007-ACl1 finalized by GS&Co

on or about February 26, 2007, described ACA as the “Portfolio Selection Agent” and stated in

11
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bold print at the top of the first page that the reference portfolio of RMBS had been “selected
by ACA.” This document contained no mention of Paulson, its economic interests in the

transaction, or its role in selecting the reference portfolio.

38.  Similarly, a 65-page flip book for ABACUS 2007-ACl finalized by GS&Co on
or about February 26, 2007 represented on its cover page that the reference portfolio of RMBS
had been “Selected by ACA Management, LLC.” The flip book included a 28-page overview
of ACA describing its business strategy, senior management team, investment philosophy,
expertise, track record and credit selection process, together with a 7-page section of
biographical information on ACA officers and employees. Investors were assured that the
party selecting the portfolio had an “alignment of economic interest” with investors. This
document contained no mention of Paulson, its economic interests in the transaction, or its role

in selecting the reference portfolio.

39.  Tourre had primary responsibility for preparing the term sheet and flip book.

40.  The Goldman Sachs MCC, which included senior-level management of
GS&Co, approved the ABACUS 2007-AC1 on or about March 12, 2007. GS&Co expected to

earn between $15-and-$20 million for structuring and marketing ABACUS 2007-AC1.

41. On or about April 26, 2007, GS&Co finalized a 178-page offering
memorandum for ABACUS 2007-ACI1. The cover page of the offering memorandum inciuded
a description of ACA as “Portfolio Selection Agent.” The Transaction Overview, Summary
and Portfolio Selection Agent sections of the memorandum all represented that the reference
portfolio of RMBS had been selected by ACA. This document contained no mention of

Paulson, its economic interests in the transaction, or its role in selecting the reference portfolio.

12
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42.  Tourre reviewed at least the Summary section of the offering memorandum

before it was sent to potential investors.

43,  Although the marketing materials for ABACUS 2007-AC1 made no mention of
Paulson or its role in the transaction, internal GS&Co communications clearly identified
Paulson, its economic interests, and its role in the transaction. For example, the March 12,
2007 MCC memorandum describing the transaction stated, “Goldman is effectively working

an order for Paulson to buy protection on specific layers of the [ABACUS 2007-]JAC1 capital

structure.”

G. GS&CO MISLED ACA INTO BELIEVING PAULSON WAS LONG EQUITY

44.  GS&Co also misled ACA into believing that Paulson was investing in the
equity of ABACUS 2007-AC1 and therefore shared a long interest with CDO investors. The
equity tranche is at the bottom of the capital structure and the first to experience losses
associated with deterioration in the performance of the underlying RMBS. Equity investors
therefore have an economic interest in the successful performance of a reference RMBS

portfolio. As of early 2007, ACA had participated in a number of CDO transactions involving

hedge funds that invested in the equity tranche.

45.  Had ACA been aware that Paulson was taking a short position against the CDO,
ACA would have been reluctant to allow Paulson to occupy an influential role in the selection
of the reference portfolio because it would present serious reputational risk to ACA, which was
in effect endorsing the reference portfolio. In fact, it is unlikely that ACA would have served
as portfolio selection agent had it known that Paulson was taking a significant short position

instead of a long equity stake in ABACUS 2007-AC1. Tourre and GS&Co were responsible

13
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for ACA’s misimpression that Paulson had a long position, rather than a short position, with

respect to the CDO,

46. On January 8, 2007, Tourre attended a meeting with representatives from
Paulson and ACA at Paulson’s offices in New York City to discuss the proposed transaction.
Paulson’s economic interest was unclear to ACA, which sought further clarification from
GS&Co. Later that day, ACA sent a GS&Co sales representative an emai! with the subject line

“Paulson meeting” that read:

“I have no idea how it went — I wouldn’t say it went poorly, not at all, but [
think it didn’t help that we didn’t know exactly how they [Paulson] want to
participate in the space. Can you get us some feedback?”

47. On January 10, 2007, Tourre emailed ACA a “Transaction Summary” that
included a description of Paulson as the “Transaction Sponsor” and referenced a
“Contemplated Capital Structure” with a “[0]% - [9]%: pre-commiitted first loss™ as part of the
Paulson deal structure. The description of this {0]% - [91% tranche at the bottom of the capital
structure was consistent with the description of an equity tranche and ACA reasonably
believed it to be a reference to the equity tranche. In fact, GS&Co never intended to market to

anyone a “[0]% - [9]%” first loss equity tranche in this transaction.

48, On January 12, 2007, Tourre spoke by telephone with ACA about the proposed
transaction. Following that conversation, on January 14, 2007, ACA sent an email to the
GS&Co sales representative raising questions about the proposed transaction and referring to
Paulson’s equity interest. The email, which had the subject line “Call with Fabrice [Toutre] on

Friday,” read in pertinent part:

“I certainly hope I didn’t come across too antagonistic on the call with Fabrice
[Tourre] last week but the structure looks difficult from a debt investor

14
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perspective. I can understand Paulson’s equity perspective but for us to put
our name on something, we have to be sure it enhances our reputation.”

49.  On January 16, 2007, the GS&Co sales representative forwarded that email to
Tourre. As of that date, Tourre knew, or was reckless in not knowing, that ACA had been

misled into believing Paulson intended to invest in the equity of ABACUS 2007-ACl1.

50, Based upon the January 10, 2007, “Transaction Summary” sent by Tourre, the
January 12, 2007 telephone call with Toutre and continuing communications with Tourre and
others at GS&Co, ACA continued to believe through the course of the transaction that Paulson

would be an equity investor in ABACUS 2007-ACl.

51. On February 12, 2007, ACA’s Commitments Committee approved the firm’s
participation in ABACUS as portfolio selection agent. The written approval memorandum
described Paulson’s role as follows: “the hedge fund equity investor wanted to invest in the 0-
9% tranche of a static mezzanine ABS CDO backed 100% by subprime residential mortgage

securitics.” Handwritten notes from the meeting reflect discussion of “portfolio selection work

with the equity investor.”

H. ABACUS 2007-AC1 INVESTORS

1. IKB

52.  IKBis a commercial bank headquartered in Dusseldorf, Germany. Historically,
IKB specialized in lending to small and medium-sized companies. Beginning in and around
2002, IKB, for itself and as an advisor, was involved in the purchase of securitized assets
referencing, or consisting of, consumer credit risk including RMBS CDOs backed by U.S.

mid-and-subprime mortgages. IKB’s former subsidiary, IKB Credit Asset Management
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GmbH, provided investment advisory services to various purchasing entities participating in a

commercial paper conduit known as the “Rhineland programme conduit.”

53. The identity and experience of those involved in the selection of CDO
portfolios was an important investment factor for IKB. In late 2006 IKB informed a GS&Co
sales representative and Tourre that it was no longer comfortable investing in the liabilities of
CDOs that did not utilize a collateral manager, meaning an independent third-party with
knowledge of the U.S. housing market and expertise in analyzing RMBS. Tourre and GS&Co

knew that ACA was a collateral manager likely to be acceptable to TKB.

54. In February, March and April 2007, GS&Co sent IKB copies of the ABACUS
2007-AC1 term sheet, flip book and offering memorandum, all of which represented that the
RMBS portfolio had been selected by ACA and omitted any reference to Paulson, its role in
selecting the reference portfolio and its adverse economic interests. Those representations and
omissions were materially false and misleading because, unbeknownst to IKB, Paulson played
a significant role in the collateral selection process and had financial interests in the transaction
directly adverse to IKB. Neither GS&Co nor Tourre informed IKB of Paulson’s participation

in the collateral selection process and its adverse economic interests.

55.  The first written marketing materials for ABACUS 2007-AC1 were distributed
on February 15, 2007, when GS&Co emailed a preliminary term sheet and reference portfolio

to the GS&Co sales representative covering IKB. Tourre was aware these materials would be

delivered to IKB.
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56. On February 19, 2007, the GS&Co sales representative forwarded the
marketing materials to IKB, explaining via email: “Attached are details of the ACA trade we

spoke about with Fabrice [Tourre] in which you thought the AAAs would be interesting.”

57. Tourre maintained direct and indirect contact with TKB in an effort to close the
deal. This included a March 6, 2007 email to the GS&Co sales representative for IKB
representing that, “This is a portfolio selected by ACA . ..” Tourre subsequently described the

portfolio in an internal GS&Co email as having been “selected by ACA/Paulson.”

58.  ABACUS 2007-AC1 closed on or about April 26, 2007. IKB bought $50
million worth of Class A-1 notes at face value. The Class A-1 Notes paid a variable interest
rate equal to LIBOR plus 85 basis points and were rated Aaa by Moody’s Investors Services,
Inc. (“Moody’s”) and AAA by Standard & Poor’s Ratings & Services (“S&P”). IKB bought
$100 million worth of Class A-2 Notes at face value. The Class A-2 Notes paid a variable

interest rate equal to LIBOR plus 110 basis points and were rated Aaa by Moody’s and AAA

by S&P.

59.  The fact that the portfolio had been selected by an independent third-party with
experience and economic interests aligned with CDO investors was important to IKB. KB
would not have invested in the transaction had it known that Paulson played a significant role
in the collateral selection process while intending to take a short position in ABACUS 2007-
AC1. Among other things, knowledge of Paulson’s role would have seriously undermined

IKB’s confidence in the portfolio selection process and led senior IKB personnel to oppose the

transaction,

17



Case 1:10-cv-00001-EJL-REB Document 68-2 Filed 04/20/10 Page 28 of 32

60.  Within months of closing, ABACUS 2007-AC1’s Class A-1 and A-2 Notes
were nearly worthless. 1KB lost almost all of its $150 million investment. Most of this money

was ultimately paid to Paulson in a series of transactions between GS&Co and Paulson,

2. ACA/ABN AMRO

6l. ACA’s parent company, ACA Capital Holdings, Inc. (“ACA Capital™),
provided financial guaranty insurance on a variety of structured finance products including
RMBS CDOs, through its wholly-owned subsidiary, ACA Financial Guaranty Corporation.
On or about May 31, 2007, ACA Capital sold protection or “wrapped” the $909 million super
senior tranche of ABACUS 2007-AC1, meaning that it assumed the credit risk associated with
that portion of the capital structure via a CDS in exchange for premium payments of

approximately 50 basis points per year.

62.  ACA Capital was unaware of Paulson’s short position in the transaction. It is
unlikely that ACA Capital would have written protection on the super senior tranche if it had
known that Paulson, which played an influential role in selecting the reference portfolio, had

taken a significant short position instead of a long equity stake in ABACUS 2007-AC1,

63. The super senior transaction with ACA Capital was intermediated by ABN
AMRO Bank N.V. (“ABN™), which was one of the largest banks in Europe during the relevant
period. This meant that, through a series of CDS between ABN and Goldman and between
ABN and ACA that netted ABN premium payments of approximately 17 basis points per year,
ABN assumed the credit risk associated with the super senior portion of ABACUS 2007-

AC1’s capital structure in the event ACA Capital was unable to pay.
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64.  GS&Co sent ABN copies of the ABACUS 2007-AC1 term sheet, flip book and
offering memorandum, all of which represented that the RMBS portfolio had been selected by
ACA and omitted any reference to Paulson’s role in the collateral selection process and its
adverse economic interest. Tourre also told ABN in emails that ACA had selected the
portfolio. These representations and omissions were materially false and misleading because,
unbeknownst to ABN, Paulson played a significant role in the collateral selection process and

had a financial interest in the transaction that was adverse to ACA Capital and ABN,

65.  Atthe end of 2007, ACA Capital was experiencing severe financial difficulties.
In early 2008, ACA Capital entered into a global settlement agreement with its counterparties
to effectively unwind approximately $69 billion worth of CDSs, approximately $26 billion of
which were related to 2005-06 vintage subprime RMBS. ACA Capital is currently operating

as a run-off financial guaranty insurance company.

66.  Inlate 2007, ABN was acquired by a consortium of banks that included the
Royal Bank of Scotland (“RBS™). On or about August 7, 2008, RBS unwound ABN’s super
senior position in ABACUS 2007-AC1 by paying GS&Co $840,909,090. Most of this money

was subsequently paid by GS&Co to Paulson.

CLAIMS FOR RELIEF

FIRST CLAIM

Section 17(a) of the Securities Act

67. Paragraphs 1-66 are realleged and incorporated herein by reference.

68.  GS&Co and Tourre each violated Section 17(a)}(1), (2) and (3) of the Exchange

Act[15 US.C. § 77g(a)(1), (2) & (3)].
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69. As set forth above, Goldman and Tourre, in the offer or sale of securities or
securities-based swap agreements, by the use of means or instruments of interstate commerce or
by the mails, directly or indirectly (a) employed devices, schemes or artifices to defraud; (b)
obtained money or property by means of untrue statements of material facts or omissions of
material facts necessary in order to make the statements made, in the light of the circumstances
under which they were made, not misleading; or (c) engaged in transactions, practices or courses

of business which operated or would operate as a fraud or deceit upon purchasers of securities,

70. GS&Co and Tourre knowingly, recklessly or negligently misrepresented in the
term sheet, flip book and offering memorandum for ABACUS 2007-AC1 that the reference
portfolio was selected by ACA without disclosing the significant role in the portfolio selection
process played by Paulson, a hedge fund with financial interests in the transaction directly
adverse to IKB, ACA Capital and ABN. GS&Co and Tourre also knowingly, recklessly or
negligently misled ACA into believing that Paulson invested in the equity of ABACUS 2007-
AC1 and, accordingly, that Paulson’s interests in the collateral section process were closely

aligned with ACA’s when in reality their interests were sharply conflicting.

SECOND CLAIM

Section 10(b) and Rule 10-b({5) of the Exchange Act

71. Paragraphs 1-70 are realleged and incorporated herein by reference.

72.  GS&Co and Tourre each violated Section 10(b) of the Exchange Act [15 U.S.C

§ 78j(b)] and Rule 10b-5 [17 C.F.R. § 240.10b-5].
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73. As set forth above, GS&Co and Tourre, in connection with the purchase or sale of
securities or securities-based swap agreements, by the use of means or instrumentalities of
interstate commetrce or of the mails, directly or indirectly (a) employed devices, schemes or
artifices to defraud; (b) made untrue statements of material facts or omissions of material facts
necessary in order to make the statements made, in the light of the circumstances under which
they were made, not misleading; or (c) engaged in transactions, practices or courses of business

which operated or would operate as a fraud or deceit upon persons.

74. GS8&Co and Tourre knowingly or recklessly misrepresented in the term sheet,
flip book and offering memorandum for ABACUS 2007-ACl that the reference portfolio was
selected by ACA without disclosing the significant role in the portfolio selection process
played by Paulson, a hedge fund with financial interests in the transaction adverse to IKB,
ACA Capital and ABN. GS&Co and Tourre also knowingly or recklessly misled ACA into
believing that Paulson invested in the equity of ABACUS 2007-AC1 and, accordingly, that
Paulson’s interests in the collateral section process were closely aligned with ACA’s when in

reality their interests were sharply conflicting.

PRAYER FOR RELIEF

WHEREFORE, the Commission respectfully requests that this Court enter a judgment:

A. Finding that GS&Co and Tourre each violated the federal securities laws and

the Commission rule alleged in this Complaint;

B. Permanently restraining and enjoining GS&Co and Tourre from violating
Section 17(a) of the Securities Act [15 U.S.C. §77q(a}], Section 10(b) of the Exchange Act

[15 U.S.C. § 78j(b)] and Exchange Act Rule 10b-5 [17 C.F.R. § 240.10b-5];
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C. Ordering GS&Co and Tourre to disgorge all illegal profits that they obtained
as a result of their fraudulent misconduct, acts or courses of conduct described in this

Complaint, and to pay prejudgment interest thereon;

D. Imposing civil monetary penalties on GS&Co and Tourre pursuant to Section

20(d}2) of the Securities Act [15 U.S.C. § 77t (d}(2)] and Section 21(d)(3) of the Exchange Act
[15U.S.C. § 78u(d)(3)]; and

E. Granting such equitable relief as may be appropriate or necessary for the benefit
of investors pursuant to Section 21(d)(5) of the Exchange Act [15 U.S.C. § 78u(d)5)] .

Dated: Washington, D.C.
April 16, 2010

Respectfully submitted,

Richard E. Simpson (RS 5859)
Reid A. Muoio (RM 2274)

Kenneth Lench
Cheryl J. Scarboro
James A. Kidney
Jeffrey Tao

Jason Anthony
Nicole C. Kelly
Jeff Leasure

Securities and Exchange Commission
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